
West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

December 1, 2016 

 

Present: Dick Beatty, Tom Kenyon, Win Johnson, Mike Spackman, Martha Harrison, Jason Booth, 

Glenn Seward, Laura Farrell, Bill Stillson 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Dick Beatty called the meeting to order at 9:03 AM.  

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – Library furnace, Town Clerk’s orders, water for Base 

Lodge demolition, executive session to discuss net metering agreement 

3) Announcements/Public Comment – None  

4) Discuss new fire hydrants north & south of ski bridge – Dick said it’s his understanding that the 

ski lift inspector is concerned about the location of the hydrant below the bridge. Laura 

confirmed Dick’s statement, and said padding can be placed around the hydrant above the 

bridge, and fencing can be placed around the booster pump building, generator and propane 

tank. Regarding the “snowmaking building” near the booster pump building, Jason confirmed 

that there is valving and piping in the building, but only for snowmaking, not for domestic 

water. Laura said Ascutney Outdoors (AO) would like to keep that building in case it’s needed 

for snowmaking or storage. Martha noted that Manosh was careful to keep all the snowmaking 

pipes intact. Dick noted an email from Dana Arey, our back-up water operator, who is not in 

favor of capping the hydrant below the bridge. Jason said the discussion has been about 

removing the hydrant at the break-away flange and putting a blind flange on the barrel. Another 

option is to remove the hydrant assembly, Jason said, and the most complicated option is to 

move the hydrant further east. The 4” line that runs from the well to Reservoir #1 is 

immediately to the east of the 8” distribution line, which is why the hydrant was installed to the 

west of the line. One problem with putting a blind flange on the barrel is that the bolt assemblies 

will not line up so it won’t be a perfect fit, although there has been some discussion about 

making a custom flange. Jason noted that there is some concern about contamination with the 

blind flange option. Tom suggested that the hydrant be moved to the edge of the parking lot so it 

can be used to fill tankers. Jason said the hydrant could probably be moved in a day, and a 

typical “crew day” is $4,000 to $5,000. Martha asked how the contractor would get around the 

4” line. Jason said they would have to make vertical adjustments because we don’t want to 

touch that line. Dick said we need both hydrants to bypass the line under the bridge if that line 

breaks. Jason said that’s correct but the hydrant also provides fire protection. Jason said, every 

few years the water system is going to be inspected for deficiencies by the state. Bill said if the 

flange is going to project 6” above the ground, that’s going to be difficult for mowing and 

grooming. Mike said his preference would be to move the hydrant closer to the parking lot but, 

in the meantime, he thought the blind flange/cap could be buried so it doesn’t stick up. Dick 

asked if the state has to approve whatever solution we come up with. Jason said it’s an 

operational decision but it would likely come up in the sanitary survey and the town would have 

to be able to prove that it’s a secure connection point in the system and there’s no adverse effect. 

Win said right now we don’t know what the water system’s capital reserve is, but he thinks we 

do have enough to move the hydrant. Win noted that there are other projects we need capital 

reserve funds for, including a generator at the main well. In addition, if we can’t cover the entire 

cost of the line to Mountainside with our $575,000 DWSRF loan, we’ll have to use capital 

reserve funds for that. Win said the town will need A+E to update the Total Project Cost for 

both the water and sewer projects as of December 31
st
. Jason agreed to provide updates. Jason 

offered to talk to Manosh about providing an estimate to move the hydrant. In the meantime, 



Win said, he thinks we ought to mill a cap for the hydrant in case winter sets in before we are 

able to move the hydrant. Tom agreed. Jason said he thinks the line to Mountainside will be 

covered within the $575,000 loan. Bill asked if Manosh will be done digging once the control 

panel arrives and the connection is made. Jason said yes. Jason agreed to send shop drawings to 

Glenn so he can get a cap milled. Martha asked if there are any other recreational concerns that 

should be taken into account when moving the hydrant. Those present did not think it would be 

a problem if it’s moved to the edge of the parking lot. Win moved to initiate the examination 

to move the hydrant as soon as possible and then decide whether conditions allow us to do 

it immediately. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Win said A+E has 

been tremendously helpful but he would have preferred to have the hydrant discussion during 

the design phase of the project.   

5) Other Business – Signs for parking area near warming hut: Laura asked if the town could have 

two signs made saying “Drop-off & Pick-up Only” and “Authorized Vehicles Only.” Laura said 

AO would pay for the signs. Mike agreed to have the signs made. Water for demolition: Jason 

said the booster pump building has a hose bib. Glenn said he thinks AO is all set for water for 

the demolition; they don’t want to take any chances with having an adverse impact on the water 

system. Library furnace: Tom noted that the Library furnace is more than 45 years old and he 

got a price from Dead River to replace the furnace for $4,000, with the work to be done in 

December. Tom said he doesn’t want the furnace to die right after we put water and sewer in the 

building. Win moved to approve the replacement of the furnace. Dick seconded the motion, 

which passed unanimously. Executive Session: Tom moved to go into executive session to 

discuss the net metering agreement. Win seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

After discussion, Win moved to come out of executive session. Tom seconded the motion, 

which passed unanimously. Win recommended that Dick contact Gerry Tarrant to get 

clarification on the 20% reserve, to clarify that we would only pay for what we use, and to 

confirm that the 90-day “out clause” is still in effect. Tom said we need the information before 

Monday so we can vote on the agreement. Dick said, based on our estimates, it looks like we 

would use 20% of the output. Town Clerk’s orders: Tom moved to sign orders. Dick seconded 

the motion, which passed unanimously.   

6) Adjourn –The Selectboard adjourned by consensus at 10:22 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 


